SUNY Cortland Healthcare Management Fieldwork Manual

Adapted from the undergraduate *Community Health Fieldwork Manual*, Spring 2019 Updated Fall 2022 (12-12-2022), Undergraduate

Table of Contents

Introduction	. 3
Course Description	3
HCM Fieldwork Learning Goals	3
Eligibility Requirements	4
Placement Planning	5
Minimum Criteria for Agency Selection	6
Affiliation Agreements	6
Financial Compensation	6
Registration	6
Medical and Background Clearance Requirements	6
Fieldwork in Other Countries	7
Courses, Athletics, and Other College Activities during Fieldwork	7
Procedure for Approving a New Agency's Internship Program	8
Student Responsibilities during Fieldwork	8
Communication	8
Attendance	8
□ Professionalism	9
Academic Work and Documents	9
Supervisor Responsibilities during Fieldwork	10
Role of the College Supervisor	10
Role of the Agency Supervisor	10
Telecommuting Policy	11
Assignments and Assessment	11
Remediation Policy: Process for Termination of Student Fieldwork Experience	11
Evaluations	11
Weekly Logs	12
Fieldwork Learning Plan	12
Agency Report	12
Professional Development Reflection	13
Healthcare Management Project	13
PROJECT PROPOSAL	14
GUIDELINES FOR PROJECT REPORT	15
Healthcare Management Weekly Logs	18
RE: Addendum to the HCM Fieldwork Manual regarding Telecommuting	21

Introduction

The undergraduate healthcare management (HCM) degree program at SUNY Cortland requires all students to complete a full-time, 12-credit fieldwork experience during their last semester before degree conferral. Each student is required to spend a full semester working in the administrative or managerial areas of a health-related agency. The purpose of the Healthcare Management Fieldwork Manual is to provide students with detailed information about the process of preparing for and completing this fieldwork experience. Students are strongly encouraged to read this manual early in their academic program to allow ample time for planning and identifying potential placements. The HCM Fieldwork Coordinator resides in the Health Department and works closely with students to advise, organize, and oversee fieldwork experiences.

Fieldwork is intended to be the culminating experience of the healthcare management major, providing students with practical experience and networking opportunities as they prepare to enter professional work settings. Importantly, it is an opportunity for experiential learning where students apply their classroom learning to real-world workplace challenges. This experience facilitates skill development and personal growth as students acquire an improved understanding of the complex nature of healthcare management work environments.

Fieldwork, therefore, should be a fulfilling and stimulating experience for students as they begin to construct their careers and transition from college to the workforce. For these reasons, the options for fieldwork placements are as broad and diverse as the field of healthcare management itself. By design, this flexibility encourages students to pursue experiences that will best support them in their transition from college student to healthcare management professional.

Course Description

HLH 498: One full-time semester. May involve residence in any part of New York State, the United States or a foreign country at student's expense. Prerequisites: Successful completion of course requirements; cumulative grade point average of at least 2.50; consent of Health Department. Grading: H, S, U grades assigned. (12 cr. hr.) Frequency code A = offered every semester.

HCM Fieldwork Learning Goals

The essence of any fieldwork experience should be experiential learning, requiring students to apply and synthesize the knowledge and skills covered in the healthcare management degree program to understand and solve problems in a professional managerial environment within a healthcare setting. Fieldwork also provides opportunities for students to demonstrate and develop critical thinking skills and management competencies as they acquire experience and work on tasks and projects relevant to their professional interests.

As a result of the fieldwork experience, HCM students will be able to:

- 1. Demonstrate professional growth throughout the fieldwork experience. (evaluations)
- 2. Discuss personal career plans and interests, in consideration of their work-related skills, talents and limitations. (professional development reflection; evaluations)
- 3. Demonstrate oral presentation and written communication skills as appropriate to the agency's work. (oral presentation, project report, evaluations)
- 4. Describe the agency in terms of the important challenges it faces that impact how healthcare is delivered. (agency report)
- 5. Discuss strategies and approaches used by the agency to support diversity, equity ,and

inclusion, i.e. variation related to socioeconomic status, gender, gender identity and expression, age, race, ethnicity, sexual identity, and/or disability. (agency report)

- 6. Demonstrate the ability to use appropriate financial and managerial methods and tools to access and analyze data to support decision-making in a healthcare setting. (project report & oral presentation)
- 7. Discuss how the agency's work relates to course content. (weekly logs; professional development reflection)

Eligibility Requirements

Student Eligibility Requirements

- 1. Cumulative Grade Point Average (GPA) of 2.50 or higher (see policy statement below)
- 2. No incomplete courses or late grades
- 3. All courses required for the healthcare management major are completed, including electives
- 4. Not on academic probation

Fieldwork GPA Eligibility Policy

- 1. A cumulative GPA of 2.50 (or higher) is required to enroll in fieldwork (HLH498).
- 2. Preliminary **fall** semester placements are made during the spring semester of the previous academic year. In order for such preliminary placement to be made, the student must be eligible for fieldwork by the end of the first summer session. This means that when grades are reviewed in May and/or at the end of the first summer session, the student must have a 2.50 (or higher) cumulative GPA. Any student who has not achieved GPA eligibility by that time will not be allowed to participate in fieldwork during the fall semester.
- 3. Preliminary **spring** placements are made during the fall semester of the academic year in which fieldwork is desired. In order for such preliminary placements to be made, the student must be eligible for fieldwork by the end of the fall semester. This means that when fall grades are reviewed in January the student must have a 2.50 (or higher) cumulative GPA. Any student who has not achieved GPA eligibility by that time will not be allowed to participate in fieldwork during the spring semester. Winter session grades are not counted in determining eligibility for fieldwork during the spring semester.
- 4. Preliminary **summer** placements are made during the spring semester of the academic year in which summer fieldwork is desired. In order for such preliminary placements to be made, the student must be eligible for fieldwork by the end of the fall semester. This means that when fall grades are reviewed in January the student must have a 2.50 (or higher) cumulative GPA. Winter session grades can be used to determine eligibility for summer fieldwork. Any student who has not achieved GPA eligibility by that time will not be allowed to participate in fieldwork during the summer.
- 5. If a student is eligible for fieldwork at the time of preliminary placement, but then the student's GPA falls below 2.50 subsequent to the preliminary placement, the student becomes ineligible and will not be permitted to begin fieldwork as originally planned.

NOTE. The term *preliminary placement* is used above to indicate that a definite fieldwork placement is not actually made until the student has cleared all eligibility requirements. This includes completion of all required course work, achievement of 2.50 GPA (or higher), resolution of any incomplete grades, etc.

Placement Planning

Students enrolled in the healthcare management major are required to complete 12 credits of HLH 498, Fieldwork in Healthcare Management. Students may choose one agency for the entire semester or two different agencies for eight weeks each. The choice of one or two agencies depends upon the student's interests and the needs of the various agencies. Most students opt for one agency.

The department or area of the agency where the student is assigned to work must primarily deal with healthcare management/administration activities and responsibilities. Placements where students are primarily involved in clinical shadowing or providing supervised hands-on care are not appropriate for the HCM fieldwork experience and will not be approved. **However, as long as the placement primarily involves healthcare management/administration experiences, students are otherwise free to choose a placement in a wide variety of health- related agencies.** This freedom allows each student to optimize the potential of fieldwork by selecting a setting that reflects their priorities in terms of career interests and location. With this freedom, however, comes responsibility. Healthcare management majors are expected to initiate the planning process early and continue until their role in the process is complete. The goal is to establish a definite and approved placement at least two to three months in advance of the first day of fieldwork. Students who do not achieve this goal may need to delay fieldwork to a later semester. The process of planning fieldwork may seem overwhelming at first, and be frustrating at times, but it works. The student and the Health Department share responsibility for planning fieldwork and securing an appropriate placement. Each has a distinct role in the process.

Student's	Health Department's Role
Get started at least a year before the semester in which the student is eligible to do fieldwork.	Provide multiple opportunities to discuss fieldwork with advisors and the HCM Fieldwork Coordinator.
Clarify goals and preferences in terms of type of experience, type of agency, and location of agency.	Provide resources on the HCM fieldwork website: 1) the HCM Fieldwork Manual; 2) prior placement list; 3) the dates, times, and locations of the two mandatory meetings; 4) information about options in other countries; and 5) the forms.
Research the possibilities using a variety of sources (agency websites, the prior placement lists, Career Services, alumni, parents and family friends, mentors, faculty, and the International Programs Office).	Provide the necessary forms and due dates to help keep students on track: 1) the fieldwork intent form; and 2) the fieldwork application form.
Explore the possibilities through phone calls, emails, and interviews; seek guidance and advice when deciding the top choice and backup choices.	Call the selected agencies to confirm that the placement is definite and can provide an appropriate fieldwork experience.
Attend the mandatory meetings.	Assist the student if the preferred placement is not acceptable and/or withdraws the offer.

Meet the application deadline Submit the fieldwork application to the HCM Fieldwork Coordinator. Complete the prior felony inquiry form, which is available in myreddragon.	
SUNY must have a current affiliation	Coordinate with the administrative
agreement with each fieldwork agency for	assistant and purchasing office to
fieldwork to begin. In the event that the	complete an Affiliation Agreement.

Minimum Criteria for Agency Selection

- 1. The work of the agency is related to or heavily involves healthcare management or healthcare administration.
- 2. At least one staff member is an experienced and credentialed healthcare management or healthcare administration professional.
- 3. The work of the agency is varied and multidimensional.

Affiliation Agreements

SUNY Cortland must have an executed affiliation agreement with a host agency in order for fieldwork to comment. The process of creating an affiliation agreement can take several weeks and even months. Therefore, it is very important for students to meet the application deadlines, for affiliation agreements to be initiated and completed PRIOR to the start of the fieldwork semester. Rarely, some agencies ultimately decline to establish an affiliation agreement with SUNY Cortland. In the event this happens, the student must identify a new host agency.

Financial Compensation

The State University of New York (SUNY) permits students to be paid by agencies for the work they do during fieldwork. Some agencies pay students a stipend, and sometimes students are hired before or during fieldwork. However, agencies are not required to pay students, and most do not. The Health Department has no responsibility to help students arrange financial compensation for fieldwork. Agency supervisors can provide guidance in this area. Students can inquire about payment when they research their placement options.

Registration

Students must register for HLH 498 by the end of the drop-add period in order to earn credit for fieldwork and meet the program requirement. Students cannot register for fieldwork unless their fieldwork application has been submitted and the placement has been reviewed and confirmed by the HCM Fieldwork Coordinator. Students who do fieldwork in another country will register for SAB credits through the International Programs Office. These SAB credits will be converted to HLH 498 credits after the student has successfully completed fieldwork.

Medical and Background Clearance Requirements

Most agencies require students to meet a set of medical and background clearance requirements in order to begin fieldwork, even if the student is not going to work directly with patients or clients.

These requirements are established by the agency, not SUNY Cortland, and usually mirror the requirements set for new employees. It is the student's responsibility to ask an appropriate agency representative, usually the agency supervisor, about medical and background clearance and associated costs, and take all necessary steps to complete the requirements in advance of the first day of fieldwork. If the start of fieldwork is delayed because the student has not been cleared, the missed days will be viewed as unexcused absences and the student will need to make up the missed days at the end of fieldwork.

The requirements for medical and background clearance may include: background check, drug testing, finger printing, physical assessment, vaccination record, COVID-19 vaccine, fitting of personal protective equipment, such as face masks, and other requirements. Agencies may require students to complete these requirements using vendors designated by the agency. SUNY Cortland does not track or maintain any of this information. It should be submitted using the agency's designated vendor or directly to the designated person at the agency itself.

Students should also be aware that they often will be required to cover the cost of completing the medical and background clearance requirements. It is important that students ask about this before accepting a placement, so that they clearly understand what is required and their financial obligation.

Fieldwork in Other Countries

One of the major advantages of fieldwork is that students can arrange a placement in another country and gain valuable experience. Students who are interested in this option should discuss it with their academic advisor and the HCM Fieldwork Coordinator. They should also go to the International Programs Office (IPO) to learn more about study abroad programming. The first step is to attend a Study Abroad 101 session at the International Programs Office in Old Main Room 220. These sessions are scheduled every week. Students should meet with an SAB advisor at the IPO to learn more about appropriate fieldwork options and set up a placement.

The fieldwork website also provides some information about SAB placements, and the HCM Fieldwork Coordinator arranges an optional meeting each semester to discuss SAB fieldwork placements with interested students. It is important to understand that some fieldwork placements in other countries are tailored to the requirements of healthcare management fieldwork. Many others, however, are not specifically designed to meet these requirements. They may or may not last for 16 weeks in the fall and spring semesters or for 12 weeks in the summer. They may or may not award 12 credits for completing the program. As a result, some SAB programs may require students to do additional "mini-placements" after they returned to the United States to make up the difference. The student would be responsible for finding the "mini-placement" and including it on their fieldwork application.

Courses, Athletics, and Other College Activities during Fieldwork

According to the College Handbook (410.08), students may not be enrolled in any coursework at Cortland (or any other institution), nor participate in any college related activities while engaged in fieldwork. However, student athletes may request permission to participate in their sport during fieldwork by submitting the Student Athlete Request form (due September 1 for spring fieldwork and Feb 1 for fall fieldwork), which is posted in the BlackBoard Community room. The decision must be approved by the Dean of the School of Professional Studies and is contingent on student performance at a satisfactory level or above throughout fieldwork. Student athletes should plan to extend fieldwork by one to two weeks to accommodate definite and/or

potential competitions.

Procedure for Approving a New Agency's Internship Program

Agencies wishing to establish an interim relationship with SUNY Cortland should do the following:

- 1. Review the HCM Fieldwork Manual thoroughly, particularly the learning goals and agency supervisor responsibilities.
- 2. Provide the HCM Fieldwork Coordinator with information about the agency and the nature of fieldwork experiences for students.
- 3. The HCM Fieldwork Coordinator will contact an agency representative to discuss fieldwork opportunities, as well as the affiliation agreement and other logistical issues.

Contact Information:

Erica Haray, MS, CHES HCM Fieldwork Coordinator, Health Department, SUNY Cortland P. O. Box 2000 Cortland NY, 13045 Email: <u>erica.haray@cortland.edu</u> Phone: 607-753-4051, Fax: 607-753-4226

Student Responsibilities during Fieldwork

• Communication

- a. Fieldwork students are expected to contact the college supervisor by phone or email the week before fieldwork begins.
- b. Fieldwork students are expected to communicate, as necessary, with both agency and college supervisors throughout fieldwork. Students should contact the college supervisor if they are experiencing a fieldwork related problem or conflict that is not easy to resolve.

• Attendance

- a. Fieldwork students are expected to work a <u>minimum</u> of 30 hours per week over 16 weeks of fieldwork in the fall and spring semesters, for a total of 480 hours. Summer fieldwork students must work a minimum of 40 hours per week over 12 weeks of fieldwork, for a total of 480 hours. Students should not typically exceed 40 hours per week. The daily schedule should be similar to that of the agency employees with whom the student is working. Hours worked by day must be documented in the weekly logs.
- b. Fieldwork students are to follow the agency's calendar and not the college calendar. Therefore, students who do their fieldwork during the spring semester do not have a spring break unless they are working at a college or university. Fieldwork students are expected to fulfill their fieldwork obligations without interference from any other activities, including part-time jobs and athletic practices. Some agencies schedule activities during the evenings and/or weekends, so fieldwork students may be required to exchange daytime for evening hours or weekday for weekend hours.
- c. <u>COVID</u>: Fieldwork students should always follow their agency's/organization's COVID 19 protocols including completing required trainings, and use of masks or personal protective equipment (PPE). For quarantine or isolation absences, students should notify their site and college supervisor immediately for more information on next steps. Students are

expected to be aware of SUNY Cortland's <u>COVID-19 guidelines</u>. Any violations of the campus policies related to the prevention of COVID-19 will be referred to the <u>Office of Student Conduct</u>.

- d. Fieldwork students are responsible for being at the agency every workday unless the agency is closed for a holiday or poor weather. If the agency supervisor is absent, the fieldwork student is still expected to do fieldwork. Students are allowed a total of three absences (18 hours) during fieldwork without having to make-up the hours missed. If more than three days (18 hours) are missed, students must make-up the additional missed time. All absences must be reported to the agency on or before the day of the absence. For planned absences, the absence request form must be submitted to the college supervisor at least one week in advance, and the college supervisor's approval must be received. In the rare event that a student needs to take a lengthy absence from fieldwork, planned or unplanned, they will need to make arrangements to make up the additional missed days at the end of the fieldwork semester. This plan must be approved by both the agency supervisor and the college supervisor in advance. SUNY regulations prohibit students from starting fieldwork early. Poor attendance does affect grades and may result in an unsatisfactory grade in extreme cases.
- e. On a case by case basis, early/late starting and end dates may be considered when the placement requirements warrant, but all students are responsible for completing the required number of weeks.
- f. At the end of the semester, fieldwork students are responsible for submitting the Summary Record of Absences form, which can be found on the HCM fieldwork website. This form will provide detailed information about all absences from fieldwork.

Professionalism

- a. Fieldwork students are responsible for following all agency policies related to confidentiality and should be aware of the consequences of violating that confidentiality. The agency's confidentiality policies and practices should be thoroughly reviewed with the agency supervisor at the beginning of fieldwork.
- b. Fieldwork students are expected to adopt the following characteristics and practices at all times while representing their agencies and SUNY Cortland:
 - i. professional appearance (including clothing)
 - ii. professional conduct
 - iii. professional language
 - iv. excellent attendance
 - v. punctuality
 - vi. teamwork
 - vii. cultural competence and respect for diversity, equity, and inclusion
 - viii. confidentiality
 - ix. ethical principles

• Academic Work and Documents

a. Fieldwork students are responsible for completing all academic assignments and fieldworkrelated forms. Guidelines for all assignments are provided in the Assessments section of this manual.

Supervisor Responsibilities during Fieldwork

A successful fieldwork experience requires that the student, the agency supervisor, and the college supervisor work together as a team. Each member of this team plays an important role. The student brings to the agency a foundation of knowledge and skills gained from their courses, and the student's role is to welcome opportunities for professional growth. The roles of the two supervisors are described below.

Role of the College Supervisor

The college supervisor serves as a liaison between the student and the agency supervisor, coordinates and assesses the academic aspect of fieldwork, monitors attendance, provides feedback and support to students as they go through fieldwork, and determines the student's final grades. If a student is at risk of getting an unsatisfactory grade in fieldwork, the college supervisor alerts the student and the fieldwork coordinator of this problem, assuming they have advance notice, and works with the student and agency supervisor to try to improve the quality of their work and meet fieldwork requirements. College supervisors do not make supervisory site visits, but they do maintain telephone and email contact with both the student and the agency supervisor during fieldwork.

Role of the Agency Supervisor

The agency supervisor provides students with a structured and planned learning experience that incorporates multiple varied opportunities for the student to develop professionally. At a minimum, agencies and agency supervisors are expected to:

- 1. Provide a fieldwork experience that is clearly healthcare management related.
- 2. Provide and/or develop a Learning Plan with the student.
- 3. Provide an adequate amount of substantive work so that students do not have excessive amounts of downtime or busywork. Avoid excessive amounts of clerical work.
- 4. Encourage student attendance and/or participation in appropriate meetings, events, workshops, trainings, conferences, etc.
- 5. Encourage students to get involved with multiple agency projects, both new and ongoing.
- 6. Encourage student observation and participation in official protocols, such as report writing, budgetary meetings, or grant activities.
- 7. Enable the student to become familiar with federal, state and local legislation pertaining to the agency's work.
- 8. Acquaint the student with the agency's mission, goals and roles in the community and the field of healthcare management
- 9. Explain the role of various departments within the agency in relation to the agency as a whole.
- 10. Assist the student in identifying and developing a project related to the work of the agency.
- 11. Complete fieldwork student performance evaluations twice per semester, once at the semester mid-point and again at the end of the fieldwork semester. The student will provide and submit the evaluation form.
- 12. Maintain communication with the college supervisor as necessary throughout fieldwork.
- 13. Share any concerns about the student's conduct, attendance, language, or other aspects of professionalism with the student and the college supervisor in a timely manner that allows the concerns to be addressed.
- 14. Explain policies and practices related to confidentiality to the fieldwork student.

- 15. Evaluate the college supervisor at the end of fieldwork. The student will provide and submit the form.
- 16. Provide appropriate work and supervision for students throughout the fieldwork period. In the event of the agency supervisor's absence, arrangements should be made for another agency employee to temporarily supervise the student. If other events occur, such as a Joint Commission visit to a hospital, students should not be told to stay home.

Telecommuting Policy

Please read the memo at the end of this document regarding telecommuting during fieldwork and COVID-19 pandemic.

In some agencies where our students do fieldwork, telecommuting is a common and accepted strategy for reducing the expense and time of lengthy commutes. Although we recognize the advantages of telecommuting, we do not believe it is appropriate for fieldwork students to telecommute on a frequent or regular basis. Unlike paid employment, whose main objective is to further the agency's mission, the main objective of fieldwork is learning about the healthcare management field and developing as a professional in the context of a specific agency. Time spent at home during the work week is time spent away from the setting where much informal learning and relationship building occur. Frequent telecommuting could significantly lessen the quality and quantity of valuable learning opportunities that are unique to fieldwork. Further, the challenges of staying productive and focused on fieldwork activities at home may be too demanding for some students. Lastly, since fieldwork students are responsible for finding an agency that is within a reasonable distance from their home, they should not have to contend with a difficult commute.

Therefore, in general, fieldwork students should not telecommute. If special factors increase their desirability of telecommuting, it could happen on an occasional basis, not to exceed eight days in total. The decision to telecommute should be made jointly by the agency and College supervisors.

Assignments and Assessment

The grading system used for fieldwork is the college wide system of Highly Satisfactory (H), Satisfactory (S), and Unsatisfactory (U). Please see the course syllabus for the criteria for each grade. A student whose work is submitted late on more than one occasion will not be able to achieve a Highly Satisfactory (H) grade.

Remediation Policy: Process for Termination of Student Fieldwork Experience

The fieldwork students will be removed at any time during the fieldwork experience when the agency supervisor, college supervisor, HCM fieldwork coordinator and the chair of the Health Department determined that the fieldwork student's performance is not satisfactory and that minimal competence cannot be achieved. In each case, the fieldwork student will receive a grade of unsatisfactory (U) for the fieldwork experience. If a student receives an unsatisfactory grade in fieldwork or is terminated, they must go through the remediation process during the following semester before receiving permission to re-enroll in HLH 498, Fieldwork in Healthcare Management.

Evaluations

Fieldwork students are formally evaluated twice by the agency supervisor. The first evaluation is at the semester mid-point and the second evaluation occurs at the end of the fieldwork semester. Due dates

for evaluations are in the syllabus. It is the student's responsibility to provide the evaluation form to their agency supervisor and to submit the evaluation when due. Agency supervisors should discuss both evaluations with the students to help them understand their strengths and limitations and professional development. Both the agency supervisor and the student sign the evaluation, and the student submits evaluation to the college supervisor. Evaluation forms can be downloaded from the HCM fieldwork website.

Weekly Logs

Students will submit weekly logs throughout the fieldwork experience. The weekly log documents the activities and tasks performed by the students for the week, as well as the time periods when they are working, and the total number of hours worked each week. In addition, students incorporate a reflective dimension into their weekly logs. Reflection may encompass a wide range of opinions, observations, insights, ideas, and questions related to the agency and the student's personal experience of fieldwork on a day-to-day basis. The weekly log is due to the college supervisor every Monday (with the exception of the final log). A list of the student's hours completed for the week is included at the beginning of each weekly log. An example of the weekly log can be found on page 16 in the HCM fieldwork manual.

Fieldwork Learning Plan

During the first week of fieldwork, the student and agency supervisor should meet to discuss a plan for the student's fieldwork experience. The Fieldwork Learning Plan should be 1-2 double spaced pages. The plan should be in the form of a numbered list of the student's learning objectives for fieldwork. Learning objectives clarify what students will focus on learning in their respective agencies. Some objectives could relate to learning knowledge integral to the agency's work while others could relate to learning skills necessary to accomplish work in the field. Still other objectives may relate to the student's personal development in terms of their professional growth and career plans. There should be at least five learning objectives for fieldwork. For each learning objective, students should list the primary experiences (activities, events, meetings, projects, trainings, etc.) that they will be involved with during fieldwork that will help them achieve the objective. It is possible that some fieldwork activities will facilitate multiple learning plan may evolve over the course of the semester for a variety of reasons. Lastly, it is normal for learning plans to vary greatly from student to student, given the diversity of agencies in which they do fieldwork.

Agency Report

Each student will write a report about the agency in which the student answers the questions below. The report should be 5 to 6 double-spaced pages in length. Students should collect information by reviewing documents and websites, as well as interviewing appropriate agency personnel. Use specific details and examples as needed to illustrate answers. When writing the report, students must number their answers to correspond with the question below. **Do not re-type the questions in the report.** Ouestions to Answer for the Agency Report

- 1. Briefly explain the agency's mission and scope of services, including identification of primary consumer or client populations.
- 2. Describe how the agency is organized in terms of leadership, divisions, and subdivisions. Do not just include an organization chart. Summarize the main responsibilities of the chief executive/administrative officer and other top administrative personnel.
- 3. Identify and explain two actual administrative or management-related challenges or problems confronting the agency and explain how this impacts healthcare delivery.

- 4. Discuss at least two ethical concerns the agency may face in conducting its operations.
- 5. Discuss two strategies and/or approaches used by the agency to navigate challenges related to human diversity (variations related to socioeconomic status, gender, gender identity, age, race, ethnicity, sexual identity, disability, etc.).
- 6. Select two courses from the healthcare management major and relate the work of the agency to the relevant content of each course.
- 7. How did you collect this information? List all sources of information, including websites and agency leaders, using APA format.

Professional Development Reflection

Near the end of the fieldwork experience, each student will write and submit a personal reflection that addresses the areas listed below. The reflection should be 2 to 3 double-spaced pages in length.

- 1. Articulate how you see yourself as a healthcare management professional.
- 2. Discuss your career plans and interests, including your work-related skills, talents, and areas for future improvement, as well as the kinds of work you find engaging and personally rewarding.
- 3. Describe your network of professional contacts, including ways to use this network to advance your chosen career.

Healthcare Management Project

Each student is required to complete a special project designed to integrate and apply knowledge acquired in the classroom in a professional managerial healthcare setting. Ideally, the project will help facilitate the student's further development of effective communication skills, managerial competencies, computer literacy and problem-solving skills. The project should be meaningful and provide useful information (for instance improving quality care processes, organizational planning, budgeting, relations with stakeholders, care coordination and treatment) to the student and the agency. The project could be an assignment that a manager has always wanted to explore or expand, if only they had someone to research, develop and/or implement the needed tasks. The project should require the student to communicate and interact with a variety of internal departments and individuals.

During the first two or three weeks of fieldwork, the student and agency supervisor should meet and decide upon a project and consult the college supervisor as needed. Once the project is selected, the student develops the Project Proposal following the criteria below. The Proposal is submitted to the college supervisor for review and feedback. The Project Proposal must be approved by the college supervisor before the project may begin. Students are encouraged to communicate with the college supervisor as they develop their project proposals. When the project is completed, the student will prepare a written report/reflection (3 - 5 double-spaced pages) and provide an oral presentation for the agency. The written reflection/report will be graded by the college supervisor. The presentation will be evaluated by the agency supervisor.

Criteria for Project Selection

The project should:

- Be specifically related to healthcare management or administration.
- Be meaningful and provide useful information to the agency and the student.
- Require the student to work on a complex multi-faceted health care administration/management problem.
- Students may have the option to develop new original, innovative ideas for solutions and future actions.

• **Project ideas** – strategic planning, budgeting/mapping expenditures, staff recruitment and/or retention, organizing digital documents, proposing solutions to a current issue, creating a marketing plan, managing marketing and social media accounts, plan an event, research and plan a new project, strategies to improve development & grant funding, assessments, quality management projects -health & safety, improving patient care, workflow processes.

PROJECT PROPOSAL

Students are encouraged to communicate with the college supervisor during development of the proposal to answer questions and help ensure that the project will meet fieldwork requirements. Once the project proposal is approved, the student may begin the project. The Project Proposal should be 1-2 double-spaced pages not including the reference page or cover page. The proposal must address the following areas and use the headings and sub-headings listed in bold. APA format should be used for citations and references.

Initiative

Introduction – State the purpose and the importance (1 - 2 pages)

- Describe the healthcare management/administration problem. Include any pertinent statistical figures or data. Include relevant background/literature review and definitions. Explain how the project fits with previous research in the field. The background of the topic clarifies the purpose and scope of the research (history, environment, mission, strategy, services, leadership, culture). *Help the reader understand the problem you are attempting to solve*.
- Clearly state the project objectives Explain what specific questions or objectives the project will answer. Provide a numbered list of the specific questions/objectives.

Materials & Methods – Explain the details of how data will be used in the project (1 page)

- Explain the analytical strategy, and the process being conducted for the project. If utilizing data:
 - Primary Data: explain the collection methods (survey, focus group, telephone or inperson interview, claims or patient or personnel database, finance receipts, etc.). Identify planned timeframes for data collection.
 - OR Secondary Data: explain the source of the data, when that data was collected, and methods used

Attach copies of surveys or other data collection instruments to your proposal.

• Explain how the report will be organized for presentation (tables, graphs, lists, narratives)?

References

- Use a minimum of three references.
- At least two references should be from peer-reviewed, scholarly sources.
- All references should be current and from credible sources.
- Sources used for statistics to describe the nature and scope of the problem should not be older than five years.
- APA format (7th ed.) should be used to cite sources in the text and in the reference list.

<u>Analysis</u>

- **Introduction** State the purpose and the importance (1 pages)
 - Describe the healthcare management/administration problem. Include any pertinent statistical figures or data. Include relevant background/literature review and definitions. Explain how the project fits with previous research in the field. The background of the topic clarifies the purpose and scope of the research (history, environment, mission,

strategy, services, leadership, culture). *Help the reader understand the problem you are attempting to solve*.

- Problem statement: Defines the specific problem you are attempting to address in the analysis. Should be written as a question.
- Landscape research the various stakeholders and their concerns (1 2 pages)
 - Identify key stakeholders key people impacted or have an interest in the issue
 - Identify key factors (i.e. political, practical, social, economic, legal, quality of care)
 - This section may be organized by stakeholders or factors

• References

- Use a minimum of three references.
- At least three references should be from peer-reviewed, scholarly sources.
- All references should be current and from credible sources.
- Sources used for statistics to describe the nature and scope of the problem should not be older than five years.
- \circ APA format (7th ed.) should be used to cite sources in the text and in the reference list.

GUIDELINES FOR PROJECT REPORT

- Length: 3 5 double-spaced pages, not including the title page and reference list
- Format: APA format must be used for in-text citations and References.
- Headings: Use the headings and sub-headings listed in bold to organize the report.
- Employ proper grammar, spelling, referencing, and logical flow.

Content of the Report:

- Title of the project, student's name, semester, HLH 498 (cover page)
- **Executive Summary:** Provide a comprehensive summary of your paper. The summary must be ~ 250 words. Although this is the first page of the report, complete this section last to provide a full synopsis of your paper.
- Introduction introduces your project and sets it into a broad context (1 2 pages)
 - This section is the same as what was already written for the proposal. However, students must modify or improve it as necessary, based on changes in the project or feedback from the college supervisor.
- The format for the next two sections depends on the option you choose:

Initiative	Analysis – Policy or Program-related
Materials & Methods – Explain the details of	Landscape – research the various stakeholders
how data will be used in the project (1 page)	and their concerns $(1 - 2 \text{ pages})$

The above sections may be the same as the proposal, however students must modify or improve it as necessary, based on changes in the project or feedback from the college supervisor.

Findi	ngs (1 – 2 pages)	Findings (1 – 2 pages)
• E	Explain the findings or results from the data	• Options – what actions will be taken
a	analysis to answer the project questions.	\circ Include 3 – 5 considerations
•]	Tables or charts may be included, but the	• Research various sources (i.e.

student must also explain the findings in words. Only including a simple table summarizing the results will not suffice.	 legislation/regulations, scholarly articles, agency reports, gov't sites/organizations) Assess options – Must include both advantages and disadvantages. Analyze equally. Identify criteria for your analysis (choose at least 3): Cost, Cost-benefit, Political feasibility, Legality, Administrative ease, Fairness, Target impacted, Effectiveness, Health care- specific criteria Include side by side table with criteria used for your analysis.
 Discussion/Conclusion (1 – 2 pages) Interpret the findings. Discuss what implications the findings may have for the agency (patients, staff-administrative and/or clinical, and the overall system) and how the agency will use the findings. What decision-making did the findings support? Did the findings prompt additional questions to answer? Explain any problems related to the project that might have impacted the findings and how these problems were handled. Propose an implementation plan 	 Recommendation (1 – 2 pages): Choose ONE option. Address the problem statement and questions posed. The Recommendation should be innovative and feasible. Explain why, despite drawbacks why this is the best option. Don't repeat analysis section Propose an implementation plan

• Reflection

• Students should explain what they learned from completing the project in terms of their personal and professional growth. This section should be written in first-person tense, as it is a personal reflection. (250 words)

• References

• The reference list should always start on a new page. A minimum of three references should be used and more are encouraged. At least two references should be from peer-reviewed, scholarly sources. All references should be current and from credible sources. Sources used for statistics to describe the nature and scope of the problem should not be older than five years. APA format (7th ed.) should be used to cite sources in the text and in the reference list.

Guidelines for Oral Presentation

Students will present an oral presentation summarizing the project and findings for their agency supervisors and other relevant agency staff. The agency supervisor will decide which agency staff are appropriate to attend the presentation and an appropriate length for the presentation. The student should use appropriate technology to support the presentation, which at a minimum means using PowerPoint or another appropriate presentation software. The agency supervisor will evaluate the student's presentation using the rubric on the HCM web site.

When creating the presentation, students should consider the following criteria for developing effective presentations:

- Delivery: Appropriate volume; appropriate tone; proper pacing and time management; does not use nuisance words; uses appropriate grammar and word choices; and avoids reading directly from slides or note cards.
- Professional Presence: Dressed professionally; uses professional gestures and mannerisms; and situation-appropriate eye contact.
- Communication: Appropriate communication tool selection (multimedia choice and quality); presentation tailored to the audience; effectively responds to questions and comments; appropriate selection of citations and sources; and presentation is effectively organized.
- Content: Accuracy; clarity and required elements or items are present.

Healthcare Management Weekly Logs

Students can use this form or write their entries in paragraph format with paragraph headings. Be sure to include all required information and be specific and thorough. Log #:

Schedule:	Hours Worked this week:
M: to (include am/pm)	
T: to (include am/pm)	
W: to (include am/pm)	Cumulative hours worked:
T: to (include am/pm)	
F: to (include am/pm)	

A summary of the work you did **each day:**

Any concerns or problems you encountered this week:

An explanation of how your work this week relates to your Learning Objectives

The highlight(s) of your week:

The people you worked with, and what you learned from the interactions:

Whether you enjoyed your internship this week, and why or why not:

Additional information you would like to share:

Date: May 19, 2021

RE: Addendum to the HCM Fieldwork Manual regarding Telecommuting

The telecommuting policy on pages 12-13 of the *HCM Fieldwork Manual* states that telecommuting on a frequent or regular basis is not appropriate for fieldwork students because of the importance of learning about the healthcare management profession on-site within the context of a specific hospital or agency.

While this remains the ideal situation in which to engage in fieldwork, the need for social distancing and staggered work schedules at healthcare facilities because of the COVID-19 pandemic has prompted reconsideration of this policy.

With permission from the HCM Fieldwork Coordinator, hybrid fieldwork experiences that include both on-site work and telecommuting and online fieldwork placements will be permitted and counted in the total hours required for fieldwork students.

Hybrid fieldwork involves a student spending hours physically on-site at the placement and also hours spent telecommuting. Virtual fieldwork placements are conducted entirely online via synchronous and asynchronous sessions with a specific health agency in a defined program.

Prior to the start of the fieldwork semester, students must obtain approval of their hybrid schedule and plan from the HCM Fieldwork Coordinator. Likewise, online placements will require the Fieldwork Coordinator's approval and must occur through established programs with health-focused agencies. Please contact the Fieldwork Coordinator for assistance in arranging your placement and telecommuting schedule.